
   

   

 

 

                   

                                                                     MEMORANDUM 
                     

 

 

 TO:  HONORABLE MAYOR & FROM:   Brooke A. Levin 

                      CITY COUNCIL    

  

SUBJECT:  Zero Waste Services Contract Negotiations    DATE:   January 3, 2014  

          ________________ 
City Administrator                          Date 

Approval         /s/ Deanna J. Santana    1/3/14    
 

INFORMATION 
 

This purpose of this memo is to provide information on the Zero Waste Services Request For 

Proposals (RFP) process.  Negotiations with the top-ranked proposers, authorized by City 

Council Resolution No. 84461 C.M.S. in June 2013, have not yet concluded.  The RFP process 

explicitly included all policy direction provided by City Council, including multiple provisions 

for wages and benefits, and for collection of organic materials at multi-family dwellings (MFD).   

 

This memo provides clarification in response to a letter dated December 2, 2103, from 

Councilmembers Gallo, Kalb, and McElhaney to Mayor Quan and City Administrator Santana, 

addressing the following two subjects (Attachment A): 

 

 Family-supporting wages and affordable family health benefits for recycling workers 

included in the recycling franchise agreement; and, 

 “Third bin” for organic materials at MFD. 

 

Wages and Benefits 

 

Through a motion passed on June 19, 2012, City Council provided policy direction on labor 

provisions to include in the RFP and subsequent Franchise Contracts, including competitive 

wages and benefits, local hire requirements, and employment preferences for any displaced 

employees.  The City Council’s specific direction for wages and benefits was the following:  

 
Competitive Wages and Benefits defined as wages and benefits equivalent to or better than 

collectively bargained contracts in use in Alameda, Contra Costa, San Francisco, Santa Clara, 

and San Mateo Counties, will be required of proposers of the Garbage and Organics and 

Residential Recycling Contracts. 

 

In addition, the motion specified that failure to meet this obligation could subject the franchisee 

to orders for corrective action and liquidated damages.  
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Multi-Family Organics Recovery 

 

Pursuant to City Council policy direction provided by Resolution 83689 C.M.S approved on 

January 17, 2012, the aforementioned motion approved on June 19, 2012, and Resolution 84461 

C.M.S. approved June 18, 2013, the proposers are required to present cost proposals for three 

variations of MFD “third bin” service for source-separated organics, which would be provided in 

addition to recovery of organic materials from mixed materials, as follows: 

 

Base RFP Third cart for organics is an “opt in” service included in rate; the third cart is 

provided when the property owner/manager requests this service. 

Alternative 1 Third cart for organics service is an “opt in” service, not included in rate, but 

available for an additional fee; the third cart is provided when the property 

owner/manager requests this service. 

Alternative 2 Third cart for organics service is included in rate and provided by default, unless 

the property owner/manager “opts out.” 

 

Negotiations on the cost proposals provided for these services are continuing, and the outcomes 

of these discussions will be reported to City Council when staff returns with a recommendation 

for awards of contracts. The City Council has established formal policy positions on the two 

matters raised in the attached letter and staff will continue to implement/negotiate accordingly.  

 

 
 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

   /s/ 

 BROOKE A. LEVIN 

 Interim Public Works Director 

 

All public information regarding the Zero Waste Services RFP is published online at 

www.zerowasteoakland.com.  For questions please contact Susan Kattchee, Acting Assistant 

Director, Public Works Agency, Department of Facilities and Environment, at (510) 238-6382. 

 

Attachment (1):   

 

 Letter from Councilmembers Noel Gallo, Dan Kalb, and Lynette Gibson McElhaney to 

Mayor Jean Quan and City Administrator Deanna J. Santana, dated December 2, 2013 

http://www.zerowasteoakland.com/
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